# ORDINANCE NO. <u>2020</u>-05

OF THE

BOARD OF ALDERMEN

OF THE

CITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI

PASSED NOVEMBER 9, 2020

AUTHORIZING:

NOT TO EXCEED \$494,000

COMBINED WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS (STATE OF MISSOURI – DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM)

SERIES 2020

THE

Maritim In the International

11.1

THE ASSESSMENT AND LOCKED TO THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY O

DOOR THE THE WORLD CONTRACTOR

300

THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN 1

PODEC DE L'ARCHE DE BOURTE SE BOURT ANNOUNCE L'ARCHE DE CONTRACTOR DE L'ARCHE DE L'ARCHE DE L'ARCHE DE L'ARCHE L'ARCHE DE L'ARCHE DE

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	ARTICLE I	
	DEFINITIONS	
Section 101.	Definition of Words and Terms	3
	ARTICLE II	
	AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS	
Section 201.	Authorization of Bonds	7
Section 202.	Security for Bonds	
Section 203.	Description of Bonds	
Section 204.	Designation of Paying Agent	
Section 205.	Method and Place of Payment of Bonds	
Section 206.	Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds	8
Section 207.	Execution, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds	9
Section 208.	Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds	
Section 209.	Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment	
Section 210.	Sale of the Bonds; Authorization and Execution of Documents	
Section 211.	Administrative Fee and Paying Agent's Fee	10
	ARTICLE III	
	REDEMPTION OF BONDS	
Section 301.	Optional Redemption	11
Section 302.	Mandatory Redemption Provisions	
Section 303.	Revisions to Exhibit B; Selection of Bonds Upon Partial Redemption	11
Section 304.	Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption	11
	ARTICLE IV	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	RATIFICATION AND ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS	
Section 401.	Ratification and Establishment of Funds and Accounts	12
Section 402.	Administration of Funds and Accounts	
Section 403.	Deposits and Application of Bond Proceeds	13
	ARTICLE V	
	A DRI TO A TION OF BENJEWING	
	APPLICATION OF REVENUES	
Section 501.	Revenue Fund	
Section 502.	Application of Moneys in Funds and Accounts	
Section 503.	Deficiency of Payments into Funds and Accounts	
Section 504.	Transfer of Funds to Paying Agent	
Section 505.	Business Days	16

Section 506. Redemption of Prior Note			
	ARTICLE VI		
	INVESTMENT OF MONEYS		
Section 601.	Investment of Moneys	16	
	ARTICLE VII		
	PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE CITY		
Section 701. Section 702. Section 703. Section 704. Section 705. Section 706.	Efficient and Economical Operation; User Charge Ordinance Rate Covenant Reasonable Charges for all Services Annual Budget Annual Audit Performance of Duties	17 17 17	
	ARTICLE VIII		
	ADDITIONAL BONDS		
Section 801. Section 802. Section 803. Section 804.	Prior Lien Bonds	18 19	
	ARTICLE IX		
	DEFAULT AND REMEDIES		
Section 901. Section 902. Section 903. Section 904. Section 905.	Events of Default Remedies Limitation on Rights of Owners Remedies Cumulative No Obligation to Levy Taxes	20 20 20	
	ARTICLE X		
	DEFEASANCE		
Section 1001.	Defeasance	21	
	ARTICLE XI		
	AMENDMENTS		
Section 1101.	Amendments	21	

# ARTICLE XII

# MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1201.	Further Authority	22
Section 1201.	Electronic Transactions	22
Section 1202.	Severability	
Section 1204.	Governing Law	
Section 1205.	Effective Date	22
	Signatures and Seal	23
	Exhibit A. Form of Bond	
	Exhibit B. Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Schedule	

Light and the state of Land and the state of the state of

BILL NO	ORDINANCE NO.
---------	---------------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED \$494,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF COMBINED WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS (STATE OF MISSOURI – DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM) SERIES 2020 OF THE CITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI, FOR THE PURPOSE OF EXTENDING AND IMPROVING THE CITY'S COMBINED WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM; PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS AND THE AGREEMENTS MADE BY THE CITY TO FACILITATE AND PROTECT THEIR PAYMENT; AND PRESCRIBING OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the City of Meadville, Missouri (the "City"), is a fourth-class city organized and existing under the constitution and laws of the State of Missouri; and

WHEREAS, the City now owns and operates a revenue producing combined waterworks and sewerage system, serving the City, its inhabitants and others within its service area, including connected and related appurtenances and facilities and extensions, improvements, additions and enlargements made or acquired by the City after the date of this Ordinance (the "System"); and

WHEREAS, on May 30, 2018, the City obtained a loan from the Bank of Brookfield - Purdin, N.A. in the aggregate principal amount of \$168,000 to finance the acquisition of land in connection with the Project (as defined below), said loan was evidenced by a Promissory Note (the "Prior Note"); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to redeem the Prior Note and construct certain improvements to the System, such improvements to be financed by the issuance by the City pursuant to this Ordinance of its Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri – Direct Loan Program) Series 2020 (the "Bonds") in the maximum principal amount of \$494,000 (the "Maximum Principal Amount"); and

WHEREAS, to provide for the most cost-effective financing of the Project, the City desires to participate in the State of Missouri Direct Loan Program (the "Direct Loan Program") of the Missouri Department of Natural Resources ("DNR") and the Clean Water Commission of the State of Missouri (the "Commission"); and

WHEREAS, the City is authorized under the provisions of Chapter 250 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the "Act"), to issue and sell revenue bonds for the purpose of paying all or part of the cost of extending and improving the System, with the cost of operation and maintenance of the System and the principal of and interest on revenue bonds payable solely from the Net Revenues (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, a special bond election was duly held in the City on April 8, 2008 (the "Election") on the following question:

## **QUESTION**

Shall the City of Meadville, Missouri, issue its combined waterworks and sewerage system revenue bonds in the amount of two million dollars (\$2,000,000.00) for the purpose of acquiring, construction, extending, improving, furnishing and equipping the City's combined waterworks and sewerage system, the cost of operation and maintenance of said system and the principal of and interest on said revenue bonds

A CONTROLLED AND A CONT

The transfer of the first of the state of the second property of the state of the second of the seco

tors care seems from these participal commons is a character from a common of the control of the

areatentinate proposition function for the leadership for the Police of the Police of

action regarded plants on manufacture and with the regarded plants of all and MASS and South Williams of the control of the co

on appearance of the control of the

The property of the control of the control of the property of the property of the Model of the Model of the Control of the Con

Philip Pylog Continue of the Color of Color Anna Anna Gorge Color Color

Specification of management benighted in agent consister, all others in Temporaria (1996) and property in the state of the

to be payable solely from the revenues derived by the City from the operation of its combined waterworks and sewerage system, including all future extensions and improvements thereto?

and it was found and determined that more than a simple majority of the qualified electors of the City voting on the question had voted in favor of the question, the vote having been 94 votes for the question and 3 votes against the question; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen (the "Governing Body") of the City has caused plans and specifications for the Project and a cost estimate to be made by the Consulting Engineer (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, the plans and specifications and the cost estimate are accepted and approved and are on file in the office of the City Clerk, the amount of the estimated cost being not less than the Maximum Principal Amount together with the initial maximum amount of the grant (\$494,000) as described in the Grant Agreement (defined below) and other available grants funds; and

WHEREAS, \$308,707.51 of the bonds authorized at the Election have been issued (the Outstanding Parity Bonds as defined below) and the City finds and determines that it is necessary and advisable and in the best interest of the City and of its inhabitants to issue an amount not to exceed \$494,000 of the bonds so authorized; and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 10-11-10 adopted on October 11, 2010 (the "Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance"), the City has issued its Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri – Direct Loan Program) Series 2010 (the "Outstanding Parity Bonds"), dated October 20, 2010, in the original principal amount of not to exceed \$622,700, of which \$308,707.51 was finally issued and \$176,200 remains outstanding as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City, upon the issuance of the Bonds, will not have outstanding any other bonds or other obligations payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the Net Revenues other than the Outstanding Parity Bonds and the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance, the City may issue additional bonds payable out of the Net Revenues that are on a parity with the Outstanding Parity Bonds, only if certain conditions are met; and

WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that it is necessary and advisable and in the best interest of the City and its inhabitants that revenue bonds be issued and secured in the form and manner provided in this Ordinance and be sold to DNR under the Direct Loan Program, and to provide the remainder of costs of extending and improving the System that may be required from subsequent issues of bonds, grants or funds of the City otherwise available.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

The contract of the policy well as well as well as the contract of the contrac

or between to and total court and despite management and all the court of the court

ong goody become and a first set to a School and resemble some amount of the first off and AMOUNTA'.

The contest institute and a sense of a problem of a some polar or an analysis of a sense of a solution of the contest of a sense of a sense of a solution of the contest of a sense of a

and have been any or the first process of the control of the contr

gighneticus of public of more send accessors in index harmon, province in the Colonia Colonia (MMA) (MMA). In the send of the public of the send of th

The common of the common terms of the common of the common

about water and the first product of the planting of the planting of the product of the product of the first of the product of

Seek Merch 1965 and a story mentioning of the contemplacy Poster Donal Stellingtons, there is no contemplated when the project of content the Seek Newman that are one a perhy with the Surational highlighteen which are such as a seek of the seek

The first of at large electric land years of a first beathwards and a second of a 2.5 Million of a part of an analysis of a 2.5 Million of a part of an analysis of a first second of a first se

do y filo and pos Religio (1000), no nale con ingravir en rengentación en periodo de la militar de la combinación

#### ARTICLE I

#### DEFINITIONS

- Section 101. <u>Definition of Words and Terms</u>. Capitalized words and terms not otherwise defined in this Ordinance have the meanings set forth in the Purchase Agreement and the Escrow Agreement (each as defined below). In addition to the foregoing and words and terms defined in the Recitals and elsewhere in this Ordinance, capitalized words and terms have the following meanings in this Ordinance:
- "Administrative Expense Fund" means the fund designated as such and established by <u>Section 4</u> of the Escrow Agreement. The Administrative Expense Fund does not constitute part of the Direct Loan Program.
- "Administrative Fee" means the semiannual administrative fee of DNR equal to 0.25% of the aggregate amount of the Bonds Outstanding as of each Administrative Fee Calculation Date (including the final maturity date of the Bonds), payable to the Paying Agent within 30 days after the City's receipt of a statement from the Paying Agent for deposit to the Administrative Expense Fund and subsequent transfers to DNR as described in Section 9 of the Escrow Agreement.
- "Administrative Fee Calculation Date" means the Business Day preceding each Principal Payment Date.
- "Authority" means the State Environmental Improvement and Energy Resources Authority, a body corporate and politic and a governmental instrumentality of the State.
- "Authority Program Bonds" means any bonds of the Authority issued under the SRF Leveraged Program, all or a portion of the proceeds of which are loaned to the City pursuant to the SRF Leveraged Program.
- "Authorized Representative" means the representative of the City designated as such by the City in accordance with the Regulations.
- "BABs Interest Subsidy Payments" means any payments to be received by the City from the U.S. Department of the Treasury under Section 54AA or Section 6431 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in connection with the payments of interest on System Revenue Bonds.
- "Bond Debt Service" means the amount of the principal of and interest due on the Bonds on the date of calculation required in this Ordinance.
- "Bond Register" means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the office of the Paying Agent.
- "Bonds" means the Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri Direct Loan Program) Series 2020, authorized and issued under this Ordinance.
  - "Closing Date" means the date of the initial issuance and delivery of the Bonds.
- "Construction Fund" means the Construction Fund established by Section 4 of the Escrow Agreement.

#### - Int 157 111

adensing our commenter, resource traditional approximation of the contraction of the instruction of the contract of the contra

"Astrinacellic d'appire Pont, "nyana the land desegnace acceptamentamination for the Regimen of the Parents Subsequence — non-extravers to be pause thank diversely conditing page of the Jones's Lorent Propositi

gallen with the figure of the particular continuous landers with account first a trian manufact.

In the appropriate of the first continuous formations of the continuous first and the first and the particular of the particular of the first and the first and the particular of the first and the fi

" dufficells" are the fibrical population of the Shake and the state of the fibrical population of the shake and the shake are the shake as the shake a shake

Softed Steen Softed Placement of the apparatus of the processes of Softed Steen Softed Steen Softed Steen Steen Softed Steen Softed Placement

"Shedimbourd Reproductive "District for representative of the Coys discussion for the City of the City

A Mariana Anglia at a Mariana and mangung ang manggal at annoch de shek bear of visibiliti. Ng paking tagapa te pinang at a manggal at kake mangkal at A.A. na paggal ang manggal and an annoch pakin Ng pakin ang pengkal apang panggal ang panggal at ang panggal at dite ang ang panggal ang panggal ang pengkal a

"Bood call for real societies among the proofing of the proofing of the annual field of the original of the state of the s

with a type of the Alice of the transfer of the first of the transfer of the t

ter strikt street gepeined speech oggeneigt fan silverheigt hadde 2 odt sinen. Edwelle Se sydnicht striktskim bowei had heddelde det street georgifelied soede Financië.

almost out to go this ton coming in think out to sock allows and according

And the Committee of the Contraction Fig. Contraction Fig. 3 (and State Section 1) to 1 (b) to 1 (contraction of the Contraction of the Contractio

"Consultant" means the Consulting Engineer, a registered municipal advisor, an independent certified public accountant or a firm of independent certified public accountants.

"Consulting Engineer" means each independent engineer or engineering firm with experience in designing and constructing wastewater treatment, sanitary sewerage, water pollution control facilities and water production and transmission facilities and retained by the City.

"Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding" means the sum of (a) the purchase price of the Bonds paid by the Owner to the Paying Agent on the Closing Date in accordance with the Purchase Agreement and deposited into the funds pursuant to Section 403, plus (b) each additional Purchase Price Installment, as notated on the Bonds by the Paying Agent, less (c) the principal amount redeemed pursuant to Article III.

"Current Expenses" means all reasonable and necessary expenses of ownership, operation, maintenance and repair of the System and keeping the System in good repair and working order, determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, including current maintenance charges, expenses of reasonable upkeep and repairs, salaries, wages, costs of materials and supplies, Administrative Fee, paying agent fees and expenses, annual audits, periodic Consultant's reports, properly allocated share of charges for insurance, the cost of purchased water, gas and power, obligations (other than for borrowed money or for rents payable under capital leases) incurred in the ordinary course of business, liabilities incurred by endorsement for collection or deposit of checks or drafts received in the ordinary course of business, short-term obligations incurred and payable within a particular Fiscal Year, obligations incurred for the purpose of leasing (pursuant to a true or operating lease) equipment, fixtures, inventory or other personal property, and all other expenses incident to the ownership and operation of the System, but excluding interest paid on, and swap, hedge or other interest-like payments made with respect to, System Revenue Bonds, depreciation, amortization and other noncash charges (including payments into the Depreciation and Replacement Account), and all general administrative expenses of the City not related to the operation of the System.

"Debt Service Fund" means the Debt Service Fund established by <u>Section 4</u> of the Escrow Agreement.

### "Defeasance Securities" means:

- (a) Federal Securities;
- (b) obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation or any successor, but only if the use of the obligations to pay and discharge Bonds pursuant to <u>Article X</u> will cause the discharged Bonds to be rated in the highest long-term category by the Rating Agency; or
- (c) obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local government unit of any state that:
  - (i) are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or for which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the date specified in the instructions, and
  - (ii) are fully secured as to principal, redemption premium and interest by a fund, consisting of cash or Federal Securities, that:
    - (A) may be applied only to the payment of principal, redemption premium and interest on the obligations, and

aminoquiat un accusia ippicianti icaccione it puntipidi pell'accide cui coccide ticalitacide. Sulkina cas sillogia (Albert Hallies santiko mili e e icanimacciditas la Università

ad sussing a function of a singular surveille in the long dark half survein for the dignification of the surveille of the surface of the surveille of the surve

okenik ali in gang samining sulting bennumb sungar "kuning mud bennat ing buist saminind"." Maggarang pulanog mingga samining meningkat migadi bada na maga gaban pul na ganakanis sul hing Jumah kuni sahi mudi sulti kunistan dang his pulap (Compyng) ti dinamagalani sultinbis kunist din Jumpyya ng mat pagbarasian samanakan na pagbarang sagit dang gana "batan dinabas kunist sungar sami

tenness in the control of the control of the state of the state of the control of

and the form of the specific of the United Service Service (see that the Service Servi

ealth round that is a second or on the import gordene throughough gold proportion than the first term of the interm of any could be completely and the country extended a more facilities are gold and the country of the country of

and the second control of the western bound of the what was be anothered to the second

illeidik kalengarahan salamin medikik mangang lapasah disapaga agai pasah disapagan pangan pa mangan kalinggan salibadi na Ilias in nagjalasah ya benggan disasah ana pangan menasa sasa ag Sina analamakan

er transport of the contract the contract product product product the contract that the contract the contract the contract that the contra

onlygo, has a supposing to treatments and not year trainings and spanned as a first training and spanned as a first training and spanned and training are a first training and training are a first training and training are a first training are a first training and training are a first training are a fir

(B) is sufficient, as verified by an independent certified public accountant, to pay the principal, redemption premium and interest on the obligations.

"Depreciation and Replacement Account" means the fund or account designated as such and created or ratified by Section 401.

"Escrow Agreement" means the Escrow Trust Agreement between the City and the Paying Agent, as supplemented, modified or amended in accordance with its terms, related to the Bonds.

"Federal Securities" means any direct obligation of, or obligation the timely payment of the principal of and interest on which is unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America and backed by its full faith and credit.

"Funds Transfer Method" means electronic transfer in immediately available funds, automated clearing house (ACH) funds, or other method approved by DNR at the written request of the City with written notice to the Paying Agent.

"Grant Agreement" means the Financial Assistance Agreement dated on or prior to the Closing Date, between the City and DNR, together with all related attachments, as supplemented, modified or amended by the City and DNR.

"Interest Payment Date" means each January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2021.

"Interest Rate" means the annual rate equal to 30% of the Revenue Bond Index as published in *The Bond Buyer* most recently prior to the Closing Date, rounded up to the nearest 0.01%.

"Investment Securities" means any securities or investments that are legal for the investment of funds of the City at the time of purchase.

"Net Revenues" means Revenues less Current Expenses.

"Operation and Maintenance Account" means the fund or account designated as such and created or ratified by Section 401.

"Ordinance" means this Ordinance as from time to time amended in accordance with its terms.

"Outstanding" means, as of the date of determination, all Bonds issued and delivered under this Ordinance, except:

- (1) Bonds canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for cancellation;
- (2) Bonds for the payment of the principal or redemption price of and interest on which money or Defeasance Securities are held under <u>Section 1001</u>;
- (3) Bonds in exchange for which, or in lieu of which, other Bonds have been registered and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance; and
  - (4) Bonds allegedly mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen and paid under <u>Section 208</u>.

attany amin'ny ara-dahanjandri ny partendra akamin'i Alles at 1941. Ale na taona fan anatomiy anany atang atan anguning at yay at anguning at anguning at anguning at anguning atan

ina dua sa bergasir incere e dand all arion, "Imposit consedição" so a carpapel." Transport y de transcentar

grande na destinia (m. 1975), na magaza (ed memberny A. Burk I. wan da baran a financia mada mada in da da da Magaza (esta magaza magaza magaza magaza mada magaza mada magaza mada (ed l. Normana), mada mada mada mada mad

off for any many of any of the second for an indicated the second second for the second sectors.

The analysis is a second formal and set the second effective to the second seco

is non-state admit striplices of materials in substant absolute reconstitution of the first sector of the first Alphani I. a. i. i. a supplicated by the SMI of Beautypy Bode in the first of the First second solved as the f Application of the supplication of the supp

grand and an enterprise described Administration Administration for the control of the control of the Control of the Administration of the Administration

- الرابطي في المساول في المستواط الأربية في الإسلام في المساول والمستول الأربية المساول المساول الم

"Toward Manager of Section 19 personal and Instituted the property of Language Section 19 personal Property of "Toward Communication of the Language Section 19 personal Section 19 person

The extraction of the Contraction of the Contractio

aantega (1 man 2 a 12) aan weed maana ay mad 1 maa

llahirin tetadikandi Maragani Kamana se kuri sili memuli murak maragani kemendinang CO Alikandeng merinakan

Anno de la completación de la la completa de la confluencia de la completa de la completa de la completa de la

Astronomics — compression of the community of the community of the community of the complete of the community of the communit

grammer in the constant by since Paytan Agents for ablivious for the regardless Agents Agents for the content of the content o

definite a comprese time in the entire production by participated the investoring of the fill of the interest of the compression of the compressio

laganti presidente de la settentra di di se la tali e tra dilintizza di serio da contra della 1971. Biographia della contra della settentata in contra della contra della contra della contra della contra della c

- Mitematically related the balancies on a refusional physical by distribute all regular second.

"Owner" means DNR or any assignee, successor or transferee of DNR under the Direct Loan Program or the SRF Leveraged Program.

"Parity Bonds" means the Outstanding Parity Bonds and any other parity bonds or other obligations issued under <u>Section 802</u> payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the Net Revenues on a parity basis with the Bonds.

"Parity Ordinance" means the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance and the ordinances under which any other Parity Bonds are issued.

"Paying Agent" means UMB Bank, N.A., the paying agent and escrow agent, and its successors and assigns acting at any time as Paying Agent and Escrow Agent under this Ordinance and the Escrow Agreement.

"Principal Payment Date" means each January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2023, and any date on which the Bonds are optionally redeemed in accordance with <u>Section 301</u>.

"Purchase Agreement" means the Purchase Agreement between the City and DNR, as supplemented, modified or amended in accordance with its terms, related to the Bonds.

"Purchase Price Installment" means the amount paid by DNR from time to time in accordance with Section 3.3 of the Purchase Agreement and deposited in the Construction Fund or otherwise in accordance with Section 403.

"Quarterly Payment Date" means each March 15, June 15, September 15 and December 15, commencing March 15, 2021.

"Rating Agency" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., and their respective successors.

"Record Date" means the 25th day (whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date.

"Repayment Fund" means the fund designated as such and established by <u>Section 4</u> of the Escrow Agreement. The Repayment Fund does not constitute part of the Direct Loan Program.

"Revenue Fund" means the fund or account designated as such and created or ratified by Section 401.

"Revenues" means all income and revenues derived by the City from the System, including investment and rental income, net proceeds from business interruption insurance, sales tax revenues and/or other moneys that have been annually appropriated by the City or that are limited solely to the payment of improvements to or expenses of the System, and any amounts deposited in escrow in connection with the acquisition, construction, remodeling, renovation and equipping of facilities to be applied during the period of determination to pay interest on System Revenue Bonds, but excluding any profits or losses on the early extinguishment of debt or on the sale or other disposition of investments or fixed or capital assets not in the ordinary course of business.

"SRF Leveraged Program" means the Missouri Leveraged State Drinking Water Revolving Fund Program and the Missouri Leveraged State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Program.

and hag down a this to a more letter a man a person of the state of the state of the state of the state of the All of a man and so the state of the state of

gyntas alam a mailine sell tam usangan a fi famili yilise li gerte ahtind sell asa a mailise and a fi sella li In alice an a bunda a mailine sella se

"Plying Pedat" aware (Carrations, 1945), the psymptotic endersons and extra entersonal and according of the control of the fourier bounds. Specifically, addition to such the fourier Northwest and the fourier Northwest and the fourier Northwest and the fourier of the fourier o

yandan 1800, Permut personner i filifika di yanut harran 1800 da masi Pini di Pi John Santa di Karana di Karana di Karana di Karana da Maria da Maria da Maria da Maria da Maria da Maria da Ma

and the state of the second contract of the second of the second contract of the second of the secon

data pada are se demonya santa are i Marchya are promoto ade a can función de labell cutil de al late i Semilitada esta los pados políticos de accionados de la familia por des memoros estados de las del Consesta de

pel naturante projekt sestimatyret. Et mad, del albude ilmé amora sonte amarante amorate la

d Barron nedadvijen pomjesti kolonje doktero osak postvinice nakovnil eligine. Ukratova i 1900. godini 1900. Postanova se programa doktero osak postvinice nakovnil eligine ukratova se postati simo elikali in telesione a

" "Heidels Date" season the Sub-disc subather or year a train of they are the salarder month or a secondary for analysis of terrors become Large.

Western Floor Court and a second of the second second second and the second of the Court of the

yd faithio yn langw farg Gree yn Betragrafe Ginesia ar fied odl room "D(HEL sociole" 100 paleae

approach, anyone with graft will's with the foreign control of the second life foreign "second "

In a control of the second control of the second of the second control of the

The Contract State of the Contract Contract State of Levenger State Dente of Water States States States States

[Note that the Wisconst Levender Contract States States and Contract States Sta

"SRF Leveraged Program Bonds" means any bonds of the City issued in connection with the City's participation in the SRF Leveraged Program.

"SRF Subsidy" means the amount of investment earnings that will accrue on the Reserve Account during each Fiscal Year (taking into account scheduled transfers from the Reserve Account that will occur upon the payment of principal on Authority Program Bonds and assuming that the construction for the applicable project has been completed), if the balance in the Reserve Account is equal to the Reserve Percentage of the principal amount of the SRF Leveraged Program Bonds outstanding, the Reserve Account is invested in an investment agreement at a fixed rate during the calculation period and earnings are reduced by the Administrative Fee payable to DNR. "Administrative Fee," "Reserve Account" and "Reserve Percentage" as used in this definition have the respective meanings set forth in the bond indentures for the applicable Authority Program Bonds.

"State" means the State of Missouri.

"Stated Maturity" means January 1, 2042, the final maturity date of the Bonds.

"Subsidy Payments" means funds received (or with respect to Section 802(a)(2)(B) funds that are reasonably expected to be received) by the City that either (a) must be used or (b) have been used (or with respect to Section 802(a)(2)(B) are reasonably expected to be used) to reduce the interest or principal payments on System Revenue Bonds. Such Subsidy Payments would include, but are not limited to, BABs Interest Subsidy Payments, SRF Subsidy and other payments received by the City through a federal or State program.

"Surplus Account" means the fund or account created or ratified in Section 401.

"System Revenue Bonds" means, collectively, the Bonds, the Outstanding Parity Bonds and all other revenue bonds or obligations that are payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the Net Revenues.

"User Charge Ordinance" means Ordinance No. \_\_\_\_\_ adopted by the Governing Body on November 9, 2020, and as amended, supplemented or replaced.

### ARTICLE II

## AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS

Section 201. <u>Authorization of Bonds</u>. The Bonds are authorized and directed to be issued in the Maximum Principal Amount subject to the terms and for the purposes of this Ordinance. Upon the Completion of Funding pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the principal amount of the Bonds issued under this Ordinance will be the Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding as of the Completion of Funding plus the principal amount previously redeemed pursuant to <u>Article III</u>. The remaining voted authorization, if any, under the Election will be the voted amount less the sum of the amount previously issued as described in the Recitals and the amount issued as calculated pursuant to the preceding sentence.

# Section 202. Security for Bonds.

(a) The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the City payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the Net Revenues. The taxing power of the City is not pledged to the payment of the Bonds.

informed the control of the control

Tight for a managing to the

akas Hadida sustay ilina sqalaa irsak siGelgi dagaan itta asaan 15 feeta kiji jaras 19

one had also it forming to be madely as the grown thing to the research and amount of managed spine had a local of the control of the control

2016 or the X-rd Institute rectation with measure as facult of the armost Victoria disease, and

"Souther Brown on Marriet analyse afficiently, the University Engly Books (1924). The Control of the State of

and gland guithmeans of health and health and the second of the second o

### THE PROPERTY.

Sentence of the state of the state of the lagrance of the process of the state of t

day compressive and unfinite

y transmission in photos or margina of the more golden bound. In respect at collection of the second and the s The state of the second of the state of the field of the second transmission of the second transmission of the second of the seco The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the City or an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision, limitation or restriction.

(b) The Bonds are issued on a parity with the Outstanding Parity Bonds.

Section 203. <u>Description of Bonds</u>. The Bonds consist of fully-registered bonds numbered from R-1 consecutively upward, in the denomination of \$100 or any integral multiple of \$0.01 in excess thereof. The Bonds will be issued in substantially the form of <u>Exhibit A</u> and will be registered, transferred and exchanged as provided in <u>Section 206</u>. The Bonds are dated as of the Closing Date. The Bonds will mature and become due on the Stated Maturity (subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to Stated Maturity as provided in <u>Article III</u>). The Bonds will bear interest on the Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding at the Interest Rate from the Closing Date and the date of receipt of each Purchase Price Installment by the Paying Agent pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (as set forth on <u>Schedule A</u> to a Bond) or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for. Interest is computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and is payable on each Interest Payment Date.

Section 204. <u>Designation of Paying Agent</u>. The City has designated the Paying Agent as the City's paying agent for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, bond registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds and escrow agent with respect to the funds and accounts established with the Paying Agent under the Escrow Agreement.

# Section 205. Method and Place of Payment of Bonds.

- (a) Payment of the Bonds will be made with any coin or currency that is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America on the payment date.
- (b) The payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, payable on each Bond at Stated Maturity or upon earlier redemption and the interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date will be made by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of the Owner shown in the Bond Register. The principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds is payable by electronic transfer in immediately available federal funds to a bank in the continental United States of America pursuant to instructions from any Owner received by the Paying Agent prior to the Record Date.
- (c) Payments of principal on the Bonds pursuant to <u>Article III</u> may be made directly to the Owner without surrender of any Bond to the Paying Agent. Accordingly, any transferee of a Bond should verify with the Paying Agent the principal of the Bond outstanding prior to such purchase or transfer, and the records of the Paying Agent shall be conclusive for such purposes.
- (d) The Paying Agent will keep a record of payment of the principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds and, at least annually, at the written request of the City, will forward a copy or summary of the record of payments to the City.
- (e) The Bonds will be held by the Paying Agent in trust for each Owner, unless the Paying Agent is otherwise directed in writing by an Owner.

# Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds.

(a) The City will cause the Paying Agent to keep the Bond Register. Each Bond when issued will be registered in the name of the Owner on the Bond Register. Bonds will be transferred and exchanged only upon the Bond Register.

the Sound do une recoperary general difference of the first or an faithfull moneral the fifty which the manuface Carry are distincted account by proving Deliving to meloling

digital Delivity godennich der Haller ignatig vom Februaria er electrical er H

the content of the property of the state of

Services for a Contraction of the feet of the Contraction of the Contraction of the Property of the Contraction of the Contract

alogal respectition and the built in 191 contents

promitte of the control of the control of the control of the control of the first bar in the control of the con

In the state of th

add with with mixed and plant to the consequence of the first terms of the source of the first terms of the

H. American manufactures planting that he contract for the process of contractures about 1 to 10 to 10

The point of the color of the second of the Appen in the Color of the color of the color of the Porthing Appendix of the Color of the C

at a fill to warmy built light go plane to go and go go and go and

- (b) Upon surrender of any Bond at the payment office of the Paying Agent in St. Louis, Missouri (or other office designated by the Paying Agent), the Paying Agent will transfer or exchange the Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination of the same Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or exchange. All Bonds presented for transfer or exchange must be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory to the Paying Agent, duly executed by the Owner or by the Owner's authorized agent. All Bonds presented for transfer or exchange must be surrendered to the Paying Agent for cancellation.
- (c) For every exchange or transfer of Bonds the City or the Paying Agent may levy a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid for the exchange or transfer. The person requesting the exchange or transfer must pay the charge. Payment of the charge is a condition precedent to the exchange or transfer. If any Owner fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against the Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure. In compliance with Section 3406 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, this amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from amounts payable to the Owner under this Ordinance and the Bonds.
- (d) The City and the Paying Agent will treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner of the Bond, whether or not payment of the Bond is overdue, for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bond and for all other purposes. All payments made to any Owner or upon the Owner's order will be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the City's liability for payment of the Bond to the extent of the sum or sums paid. Neither the City nor the Paying Agent will be affected by any notice to the contrary.
- (e) At reasonable times and under reasonable rules established by the Paying Agent, the Owners of 25% or more in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, or their representative designated in a manner satisfactory to the Paying Agent, may inspect and copy the Bond Register.

## Section 207. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds.

- (a) Each Bond must be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk, and have the official seal of the City affixed or imprinted thereon. If any officer whose manual or facsimile signature appears on any Bond ceases to be an officer before the delivery of any Bond signed by the officer, the manual or facsimile signature on the Bond will be valid and sufficient for all purposes of this Ordinance.
- (b) The Mayor and the City Clerk are directed to prepare and execute the Bonds as specified in this Article, and when executed, to deliver the Bonds to the Paying Agent for authentication. Each Bond will be authenticated by any authorized signatory of the Paying Agent. No Bond is entitled to any security or benefit under this Ordinance or is valid or obligatory for any purpose until authenticated by the Paying Agent.
- (c) Prior to the Completion of Funding, promptly upon the receipt by the Paying Agent of each Purchase Price Installment paid by the Owner in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, an authorized signatory of the Paying Agent will endorse <u>Schedule A</u> to a Bond with the date of receipt of the Purchase Price Installment, the amount of the Purchase Price Installment and the resulting Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding. No further entries to <u>Schedule A</u> will be made after the Completion of Funding.

- The state of the s
- (c) He corrections and he correction continues of the second section of the limit of the large larger values and the continues of the continue
- The property of the first serior and the first property and the serior of the serior o
- of the standard of the standar

### Alter Michigan I will bugger an accomplished from the second for the second

- Interthetion mapped and to conjugate all upped on humanically violating and mapping of scale and scale and
- order of the following the control of the direction of the property of the control of the contro
- the former a price of an entitle of the second and the properties of the control of the control

# Section 208. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds.

- (a) If (i) any mutilated Bond is surrendered to the Paying Agent, or the City and the Paying Agent receive evidence to their satisfaction of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (ii) there is delivered to the City and the Paying Agent security or indemnity as required by them, in the absence of notice to the City or the Paying Agent that the Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the City will execute and the Paying Agent will register and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and of like tenor and principal amount. If the Bond has become or is about to become due, the City may pay the Bond instead of issuing a new Bond.
- (b) Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the City or the Paying Agent may require the payment by the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge imposed and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected with the issuance of the Bond.
- (c) Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section in lieu of any mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond will constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the City, whether or not the mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond is enforceable by anyone at any time, and will be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds.
- Section 209. <u>Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment</u>. All Bonds that have been paid or redeemed or that have otherwise been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before Stated Maturity, will be canceled immediately upon the payment or redemption and the Paying Agent's receipt of the Bonds. The Paying Agent will periodically destroy canceled Bonds. The Paying Agent will execute a certificate in duplicate describing the destroyed Bonds and file an executed counterpart of the certificate with the City.

# Section 210. Sale of the Bonds; Authorization and Execution of Documents.

- (a) The Bonds will be sold to the Owner at the purchase price of 100% of the initial Purchase Price Installment paid on the Closing Date plus each Purchase Price Installment made by the Owner thereafter pursuant to Section 3.3 of the Purchase Agreement, without accrued interest.
- (b) The City is authorized to enter into the Purchase Agreement, the Grant Agreement and the Escrow Agreement, in substantially the forms presented to the Governing Body. The Mayor is authorized to execute the Purchase Agreement, the Grant Agreement and the Escrow Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, with changes approved by the Mayor, which approval will be conclusively evidenced by the signature of the Mayor of the City. The Mayor is further authorized and directed to execute other documents, certificates and instruments that are necessary or desirable to carry out the intent of this Ordinance. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to attest the execution of the Purchase Agreement, the Grant Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and any other documents, certificates and instruments that are necessary or desirable to carry out the intent of this Ordinance.
- Section 211. <u>Administrative Fee and Paying Agent's Fee</u>. Subject to <u>Section 202</u>, the City will pay to the Paying Agent, within 30 days after receipt of a statement from the Paying Agent, (a) the Administrative Fee, and (b) an amount equal to the Paying Agent's fees and expenses as provided in the Escrow Agreement.

# رائد المراجعة المراجعة

particle of the critical at another private of the transmitten of the following of the first being on the first being of the first being the first being of the first being the f

The control of the co

procedular construction of the control of the contr

and seed indicated the Bismann and Lyton Holy, and Europet this point opposition of a seed of a delivery this beliefs suched in a water thing A possess of a consistency result of a seed of a seed of a delivery thing to file and house on all adoles are resulted and analyzed and are possess of the possess of a seed of a seed of a delivery belief of the file of a delivery belief to be a seed of the file of a delivery of the file of a delivery belief to be a delivery of the file of the file of the file of a delivery of the file of

elitapillas egiles err<u>lav</u>gat feremele a salinda egant (agerra gjyr) — ete sagin

asarawa kalimi ani ja pita dia mangamakan matri serencek arina diba an puratang badiji. Ing Mangalanda na shara mperihani serit sumbani dians aning badi parasa a spir na bang insulbani sanay Mangalanda na shara mperihan na diangan mangang Arsandan kalimi a diangan mangan na hayan na kalimpenti

The transfer of the control of the control of the property of the control of the

The said wit to the policy of the control of the programment have been proportion. The protection of t

### ARTICLE III

## REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 301. Optional Redemption. At the option of the City, with the prior written consent of the Owner, Bonds may be called for redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity thereof in whole or in part at any time, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. If an optional redemption is in part, the principal amount for each Principal Payment Date following the optional redemption will be reduced on a proportionate basis (to the nearest \$0.01). If the Bonds are optionally redeemed prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, the Owner may require the payment by the City of a sum sufficient to cover any professional costs, fees and expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent and other consultants (legal, financial or otherwise) of the Owner and the Authority) incurred in connection with the early redemption of the Bond.

## Section 302. Mandatory Redemption Provisions.

- (a) The Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the Principal Payment Dates and in the principal amounts as set forth on Exhibit B.
- (b) If upon the Completion of Funding, the Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding is less than the Maximum Principal Amount (disregarding any scheduled redemptions above that have occurred prior to the Completion of Funding), the principal amount for each Principal Payment Date following the Completion of Funding will be reduced on a proportionate basis (to the nearest \$0.01).

# Section 303. Revisions to Exhibit B; Selection of Bonds Upon Partial Redemption.

- (a) Upon the partial redemption of the Bonds pursuant to <u>Section 301</u> or if <u>Section 302(b)</u> is applicable, the Owner will provide a replacement <u>Exhibit B</u>, reflecting the reductions to the principal amounts, to the Paying Agent and the City, which will be binding on the City absent manifest error and will replace the previous <u>Exhibit B</u> without any further action on the part of the City. The revised <u>Exhibit B</u> is subject to such verification requirements as may be reasonably established by the Paying Agent.
- (b) The redemption of the Bonds in part will be reflected in the records maintained by the Paying Agent.

## Section 304. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.

- (a) No notice of the mandatory redemption of Bonds is required to be given. If the Bonds are being optionally redeemed, notice of redemption will be given in the manner described below. Unless waived by any Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, the Paying Agent, on behalf of the City, will give notice by mailing a redemption notice, at least 15 days, but not more than 30 days, prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register.
  - (b) All redemption notices will be dated and include the following information:
    - (1) the redemption date,
  - (2) the redemption price, consisting of the principal amount, redemption premium, if any, and interest to the redemption date,

The property of the property o

# Control Md. I de la computer d'authorite de

espending of the entry problem of the problem of the confidence of the entry problem. The entry problem of the entry of th

and to greek and the control of the continued safe applicant to a statement may be a fell to a superior of the control of the

# and greate N. Office Level College Date region (pdf at his mile to a conservation). The second college is a conservation of the college of th

at 10% of arms of the 100 to the property of the enterpolation of the manufacture between the most and an important of the property of the pro

gin. Har edgraphed 2002 Touds-Mi ped will be will be will the nevels materiased by law. Paper Byeni

# rigino natival del la la palla la comita del del metro e

A second control of the control of t

eterdestalid piliered mysembal injulianderd flee een en eegender 19. 🔧 oo

and an improved the later

in the property of the propert

- (3) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification number, if any, Stated Maturity and, in the case of partial redemption of any Bond, the respective principal amounts of the Bonds to be redeemed,
- (4) a statement that on the redemption date the redemption price will become due and payable upon each Bond or portion of a Bond called for redemption, and that interest ceases to accrue on the redeemed amount from and after the redemption date, and
- (5) the address of the principal office of the Paying Agent where the Bonds must be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.
- (c) If notice of redemption has been given or waived, the Bonds or portions to be redeemed will become due and payable on the redemption date at the redemption price specified in the notice. From and after the redemption date (unless the City defaults in the payment of the redemption price), the called Bonds will cease to bear interest. Upon the surrender of Bonds for payment of the redemption price in accordance with the notice, the Paying Agent will pay the redemption price to the applicable Owners.

# ARTICLE IV

#### RATIFICATION AND ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

### Section 401. Ratification and Establishment of Funds and Accounts.

- (a) The separate funds and accounts created in, or ratified by, the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance, known respectively as the:
  - (1) Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Fund (the "Revenue Fund");
  - (2) Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Operation and Maintenance Account (the "Operation and Maintenance Account");
  - (3) Principal Account, the Interest Account and the Debt Service Fund established under the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance (the "Outstanding Parity Bond Debt Service Account");
  - (4) Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Depreciation and Replacement Account (the "Depreciation and Replacement Account"); and
  - (5) Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Surplus Account (the "Surplus Account"),

## are hereby ratified.

- (b) The City hereby establishes the following special funds and accounts with the Paying Agent under the Escrow Agreement:
  - (1) the Debt Service Fund;
  - (2) the Construction Fund;

- che de la company de la compan
- him and an about the entire contract to the contract of the problem of the contract of the con
- ad particular de la completa de la c Superiori de la completa de la comp
- boom for an elementary necessarily and devices removely resolvent instruments because the first meaning of a constant of the many of the second meaning of the second meaning and the second meaning of the second meaning and the second meaning of the second meaning and the second meaning and the second meaning and the second meaning and the second meaning meaning and the second meaning meaning and the second mea

## VERTICAL PROPERTY.

# sy sauno sesy, mwy, s opie na ara gwang pathiday isan disabilitan isang ing pat

- Asserting the property of the property of the first property of the second section of the section of the second section of the section
- hadrusen kantunite kurungan kanturan an hawan masambarah kurungan di pisa. Matura da mangan pengenalah kanturah kurungan kanturah kurungan pengenalah kanturah kanturah kanturah kanturah
- The Combined Material Control & Control & Control & Company of Com
- worm (edulophy here) because it is but the himography week but a promot transfer of the option of th
- tentennya (international Tentesper System Thomas into the continue of the first tentesper System (in the continue of the conti
- notionals, with the analysis and both solvents were provided to a special solvents. The approximation of the solvents of the s

I militar of non-

- gaval da like tilge kerde semblishes dig bellevilin apsekilde sed sessinin selte blad har farrings Hereal da beste seden selter beste beste seden sed
  - plant to the state of the state

- (3) the Repayment Fund, consisting of the Principal Account and the Interest Account; and
  - (4) the Administrative Expense Fund.

Section 402. Administration of Funds and Accounts. The funds and accounts described in Section 401(a)(1), (2), (4) and (5) will be maintained and administered by the City under this Ordinance and the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance while any of the Bonds and the Outstanding Parity Bonds are outstanding. The funds and accounts described in Section 401(a)(3) will be maintained and administered by or on behalf of the City while the Outstanding Parity Bonds are outstanding. The funds and accounts described in Section 401(b) will be maintained and administered by the Paying Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement while the Bonds are Outstanding.

# Section 403. Deposits and Application of Bond Proceeds.

- (a) The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds on the Closing Date will be deposited upon the delivery of the Bonds into the Construction Fund and the Administrative Expense Fund as provided in the Escrow Agreement. Thereafter, each Purchase Price Installment will be deposited into the Construction Fund.
- (b) Moneys in the Construction Fund will be disbursed to the City for the sole purpose of paying the Eligible Costs of the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications prepared by the Consulting Engineer, previously approved by the Governing Body and DNR and on file in the office of the City Clerk, including any alterations in or amendments to the plans and specifications approved by the Governing Body and DNR with the advice of the Consulting Engineer.
- (c) Requisitions will be submitted for funding of the Purchase Price Installments and resulting withdrawals from the Construction Fund in accordance with <u>Article III</u> of the Purchase Agreement. Funds will be disbursed from the Administrative Expense Fund as provided in the Escrow Agreement.

### ARTICLE V

### APPLICATION OF REVENUES

Section 501. Revenue Fund. The City covenants and agrees that from and after the delivery of the Bonds and so long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding and unpaid, all Revenues derived and collected by the City will be deposited into the Revenue Fund when received. The Revenues will be segregated from all other moneys, revenues, funds and accounts of the City. The Revenue Fund will be administered and applied solely for the purposes and in the manner provided in the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance, this Ordinance and any other ordinance with respect to System Revenue Bonds.

## Section 502. Application of Moneys in Funds and Accounts.

- (a) The City will apply moneys in the Revenue Fund on the dates, in the amounts and in the order as follows:
  - Operation and Maintenance Account. On the first day of each month, to the Operation and Maintenance Account an amount sufficient to pay the estimated cost of operating and maintaining the System during the month, which amount shall include (i) on the dates required by the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance, the amounts required to pay the fees described in the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance, if any, and (ii) on the dates required by Section 211, transfers

and the first of the first are extended to the presence that the countries of the

Section 1996, and promoted the second of the

signamed his see by regional type I have the part of the following to the control of the control

terment the control of the control o

An expense with the tests off of his match set like brind entranse of and or specially sets and an entranse of the sets of the

gradus a file at total describe de la collection de la co

#### ZELICITZ DE DEVIGILACIO DE SINC

The control of the second state of the second secon

arma — A hangdard ar armad da najpangga — Gd-warad

ann in Crincionaumacht al aist Condianachan't cu<u>maeall an</u>n ai agun ar a bheachtaid i chaill an an an an Siaeatha an an an

old to admine the design of each and the standard experimentally from meaning of the participation of the speciment of the sp

to the Paying Agent for further deposit to the Administrative Expense Fund, the amounts required to pay the Administrative Fee and the Paying Agent's Fees and expenses;

- (2) Repayment Fund and Debt Service Account. On a parity basis (i) at the times required under the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance, to the Outstanding Parity Bond Debt Service Account the amount required under the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance and (ii) by the Funds Transfer Method, on each Quarterly Payment Date, to the Paying Agent for credit to the Interest Account and the Principal Account of the Repayment Fund:
  - (A) to the Interest Account of the Repayment Fund, on March 15, 2021, and on each Quarterly Payment Date thereafter, 1/2 of the amount of interest due on the Bonds on the next Interest Payment Date with the balance in the Debt Service Fund and the Interest Account on an Interest Payment Date after the payment of the principal of and interest due on the Bonds on the Interest Payment Date to be credited against the next succeeding Quarterly Payment; provided that prior to the Completion of Funding,
    - (i) the investment earnings on the Construction Fund for the preceding calendar quarter will be credited against the next Quarterly Payment,
    - (ii) for purposes of the first Quarterly Payment of each Interest Period, the amount of interest due on the next Interest Payment Date will be estimated based upon an expected disbursement schedule for the Interest Period provided by the City to DNR and the Paying Agent, and
    - (iii) for purposes of the second Quarterly Payment of each Interest Period, the interest due on the next Interest Payment Date will be calculated by the Paying Agent based upon Purchase Price Installments funded at least three Business Days prior to the Quarterly Payment Date and the second Quarterly Payment calculated so that the amount on deposit in the Interest Account after receipt of the second Quarterly Payment will equal interest payable on the Bonds on the Interest Payment Date; and
  - (B) to the Principal Account of the Repayment Fund, on September 15, 2022, and on each Quarterly Payment Date thereafter, 1/2 of the principal due on the Bonds on the next succeeding Principal Payment Date, whether at Stated Maturity or upon mandatory sinking fund redemption. If the Initiation of Operations specified in the certificate delivered by the City under Section 3.5 of the Purchase Agreement is earlier than the expected Initiation of Operations, (i) the first quarterly installment of principal of the Bonds will be paid no later than the Quarterly Payment Date that is not more than 12 months after the Initiation of Operations, and (ii) on the Quarterly Payment Date that is not more than 20 years after the Initiation of Operations, all remaining unpaid principal installments of the Bonds will be paid;
- (3) Debt Service Reserve Account. After payments and credits required at the time to be made under the provisions of paragraphs (1) and (2) of this subsection have been made, there shall next be paid and credited to any debt service reserve fund or account for any Parity Bonds issued by the City in the amounts and at the times required under the Parity Bond Ordinance:
- (4) Depreciation and Replacement Account. After all payments and credits required at the time to be made under the provisions of paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) of this subsection have been made, there shall next be paid and credited to the Depreciation and Replacement Account the sum

the first colored and the four transmission in the fall matter transmission for the first of the first of the first firs

The state of the control of the state of the

tions (City of a deapth no years) to recognized will be improved another offers. Disclands an accord research to me can can be to an according to the expect of process of the congree translating and the discrete and an expectate with the expect of the conductor recombined and bear to become any only to discrete and expect of the expect of the conductor of the contense and managed business and at most according to the content of the conductor of against the proceedings of the conductor of the conductor of the conductor of the con-

The improvement and the discount community of the Company of the State of the State

distribution and it the anticonstant of the matth be well the measured and the state of the particular of the matth of the

the proposed of the second former former former former former of second of second interest for each function. The cost, the interest former fo

and the state of t

On the second of the contract of the second of the second

The first of the control of the second through the second second processes and control of the second second second to the first through the second se

of \$954.95 each month, commencing on the first day of the month following the issuance of the Bonds. Except as provided in Section 503, moneys in the Depreciation and Replacement Account shall be expended and used by the City solely for the purpose of making replacements and repairs in and to the System as set forth in the replacement schedule included in the User Charge Ordinance and as may be necessary to keep the System in good repair and working order and to assure the continued effective and efficient operation thereof. The amounts required to be paid and credited to the Depreciation and Replacement Account shall be exclusive of any amounts at the time required to be paid and credited to the Account under the provisions of the Parity Bond Ordinances; and

- (5) Surplus Account. At the times required under the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance or, after the date on which the Outstanding Parity Bonds are no longer outstanding, on each Quarterly Payment Date, the remaining balance to the Surplus Account. Moneys in the Surplus Account are to be expended for the following purposes as determined by the Governing Body:
  - (1) paying the cost of the operation, maintenance and repair of the System to the extent necessary after the application of the moneys held in the Operation and Maintenance Account and the Depreciation and Replacement Account;
    - (2) paying the cost of extending, enlarging or improving the System;
  - (3) preventing default in, anticipating payments into or increasing the amounts in the accounts confirmed or established in <u>Section 401</u>, the Principal Account, the Interest Account or the Depreciation and Replacement Account, or establishing or increasing the amount of any debt service account or debt service reserve account created by the City for the payment of any System Revenue Bonds subsequently issued;
  - (4) redeeming and paying prior to Stated Maturity, or, at the option of the City, purchasing in the open market at the best price obtainable not exceeding the call price (if any bonds are callable), the Bonds, the Outstanding Parity Bonds or any other System Revenue Bonds hereafter issued under the conditions hereinafter specified and standing on a parity with the Bonds, including principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest; or
  - (5) subject to <u>Section 502(c)</u>, any other lawful purpose in connection with the operation of the System and benefiting the System including, but not limited to, payments with respect to bonds or other obligations of the System.
- (b) All amounts paid and credited to the Operation and Maintenance Account will be expended solely for the purpose of paying the Current Expenses of the System.
- (c) No moneys derived by the City from the System will be diverted to the general governmental or municipal functions of the City.
- (d) If the deposits to the Operation and Maintenance Account (the "OM Deposits") required under this Section are greater than the OM Deposits required in the User Charge Ordinance, the OM Deposits under the User Charge Ordinance will be deemed a credit toward OM Deposits required under this Section. If the OM Deposits required under this Section are less than those required in the User Charge Ordinance, OM Deposits under this Section will be deemed a credit to OM Deposits required under the User Charge Ordinance.

the second second second properties of the second s

- has it general postunium en alle robert Francia, moral soft 18. Immeral, rouged. 18)

  The posture in a special second soft your beginning to self should not seemed the second of the second soft and second soft when the second soft is second soft and second soft in the second sof
- The country of the dependence of the operation of the country of the Source of the Sou

### and the state of t

- The content of the co
- van Der (15... respectivel) de 16.000 van de la publica maign missen hate pallativales. (16)
  (1) utang la participation de la residiamenta sensa habel del la respectiva de la filia de la participation del participation de la participation del la participation del la participation del la participation de la participation del la participation del la participation della participation de
- And the comment of the control of th
- 40 20 minutes prid unit material in the Operation and Mountain resistance of the operation and the operation of the following the Committee of the System.
- 4.1 No topological to the Cut from the States will be alterted to the pureation concentration or exercise continuously to the

### Section 503. Deficiency of Payments into Funds and Accounts.

- (a) If the Revenues are insufficient to make any payment on any date specified in this Article, the City will make good the amount of the deficiency by making additional payments out of the first available Revenues for application in the order specified in <u>Section 502</u>.
- (b) If the moneys in the Outstanding Parity Bond Debt Service Account, the Outstanding Parity Bond Debt Service Reserve Account, the Principal Account or the Interest Account are not sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Outstanding Parity Bonds and the Bonds as and when the same become due, the City will apply moneys in the Surplus Account and the Depreciation and Replacement Account on a proportionate basis (based upon the outstanding principal amounts of the Bonds and the Outstanding Parity Bonds) to the Outstanding Parity Bond Debt Service Account, the Principal Account and the Interest Account to prevent any default in the payment of the principal of and interest on the Outstanding Parity Bonds and the Bonds.
- Section 504. Transfer of Funds to Paying Agent. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to make the payments to the Principal Account and the Interest Account as provided in Section 502, and, to the extent necessary to prevent a default in the payment of any System Revenue Bonds, from the Surplus Account and from the Depreciation and Replacement Account as provided in Sections 502 and 503, sums sufficient to pay the System Revenue Bonds when due, and to forward amounts to the Paying Agent by the Funds Transfer Method that ensures the Paying Agent will have sufficient available funds on or before the second Business Day immediately preceding the dates when payments on the Bonds are due. Upon the payment of all principal and interest on the Bonds, the Paying Agent will return any excess funds to the City. Except as otherwise provided in the Escrow Agreement, all moneys deposited by the City with the Paying Agent are subject to the provisions of this Ordinance.
- Section 505. <u>Business Days</u>. If any date for the payment of principal of, or redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds or the taking of any other action hereunder is not a Business Day, then such payment shall be due, or such action shall be taken, on the first Business Day thereafter with the same force and effect as if made on the date fixed for payment or performance.
- Section 506. <u>Redemption of Prior Note</u>. The Governing Body desires to redeem the Prior Note prior to maturity on the date of issuance of the Bonds or on the earliest practical date thereafter. The Prior Note will be redeemed at the office of the Bank of Brookfield Purdin, N.A., the owner of the Prior Note on the redemption date. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take such other action as may be necessary in order to effect the redemption of the Prior Note as herein provided.

### ARTICLE VI

### INVESTMENT OF MONEYS

### Section 601. Investment of Moneys.

(a) Moneys held in any fund or account referred to in this Ordinance may be invested in Investment Securities; provided, however, that any fund or account held by the Paying Agent shall be invested as provided in Section 11 of the Escrow Agreement. No such investment will be made for a period extending longer than the date when the money invested may be needed. All earnings on any investments held in any fund or account will accrue to the applicable fund or account. In determining the amount held in any fund or account under this Ordinance, obligations will be valued at the lower of cost or market value. If the amount in any fund or account held within the Treasury of the City is greater than the required amount, the City may transfer the excess to the Revenue Fund.

adalta) nell'us tallicom utan and mallimagnique<mark>m soluta e tro</mark>piallicon una coperció dell'Alli dell' 1908 alli Scalini Birchelligi Santa Diar un'almo val gambia della la liquiam un'a licina salma blas val Vedin 1908 nottroll dell'accomposito in mallima dell'accomposito i mallima per solutioni si distinguis

quit de la compacta de la complicación de la compacta de la complicación de la compacta de la complicación de la compacta del la compacta de la compacta de la compacta del la compacta de la compacta del la compacta de la compacta del la compacta

and the CDE many continues and the continues of the continues to the continues of the conti

militaris de la legioning la manyag art not ands and the special committee of the many and antimorphism of the special and many and antimorphism of the special and many and the special and t

to the second continuous designation of the second continuous and the second continuous continuous

### TY TO ESPECIA

### The second of the second of

all television of special contents of the explanation of the property between any contents in appearing and the property of th

(b) If the Outstanding Parity Bonds are outstanding, any investments made pursuant to this Section are subject to the applicable restrictions in the Outstanding Parity Bond Ordinance.

### ARTICLE VII

### PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE CITY

Section 701. <u>Efficient and Economical Operation; User Charge Ordinance</u>. The City will continuously own and will operate the System in an efficient and economical manner and will keep and maintain the System in good repair and working order. The City has duly approved the User Charge Ordinance and will enforce the provisions thereof.

Rate Covenant. The City will fix, establish, maintain and collect rates, fees and Section 702. charges for the use and services furnished by or through the System to produce income and revenues sufficient to (a) pay the costs of the operation and maintenance of the System; (b) pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when due; (c) enable the City to have in each Fiscal Year Net Revenues of not less than 110% of the amount required to be paid by the City in the Fiscal Year on account of both principal of and interest on all System Revenue Bonds at the time outstanding, provided that (i) interest on any System Revenue Bonds will be reduced by Subsidy Payments, if any, and (ii) principal and/or interest on any System Revenue Bonds will be reduced by amounts deposited in trust or escrowed for the payment thereof with the Owner or commercial bank or trust company located in the State of Missouri having full trust powers and acting as trustee or escrow agent and that are reasonably expected to be used for the payment of principal and/or interest on any System Revenue Bonds during the calculation period; and (d) provide reasonable and adequate reserves for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon and for the protection and benefit of the System as provided in this Ordinance. The City will require the prompt payment of accounts for service rendered by or through the System and will promptly take whatever action is legally permissible to enforce and collect delinquent charges. Each Fiscal Year, the City shall review the rates, fees and charges for the use and services furnished by or through the System and revise such rates, fees and charges as necessary to ensure that the System generates Net Revenues sufficient to meet the requirements of this Section.

Section 703. <u>Reasonable Charges for all Services</u>. None of the facilities or services provided by the System will be furnished to any user (excepting the City itself) without a reasonable charge being made therefor. If the income and revenues derived by the City from the System are insufficient to pay the reasonable expenses of operation and maintenance of the System and the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due, the City will pay into the Revenue Fund a fair and reasonable payment in accordance with effective applicable rates and charges for all services or other facilities furnished to the City or any of its departments by the System.

Section 704. <u>Annual Budget</u>. Prior to the commencement of each Fiscal Year, the City will cause a budget setting forth the estimated receipts and expenditures of the System for the next succeeding Fiscal Year to be prepared and filed with the City Clerk. The City Clerk, within 30 days after the end of the current Fiscal Year, will mail a copy of the budget to the Owner. The annual budget will be prepared in accordance with the laws of the State.

### Section 705. Annual Audit.

(a) Promptly after the end of each Fiscal Year, the City will cause an audit of the System for the preceding Fiscal Year to be made by a certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants

dell of the conformation of a primarile engineering that unlamed our property of a company of the company of th

### 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

### k risuur makskumaga in Lumpia i

Section 1967 and the second of the second of

Les and the state of the control of

to the contract of the contrac

Company of the control of the contro

Children of the control

in territoria victoria della que anno fire vicio solo por placció plano loccora seferenza e menerali. Sundiviscon sella della della processi della processi mello della come della menerale della personali della co employed for that purpose and paid from the Revenues. The annual audit will cover in reasonable detail the operation of the System during the Fiscal Year.

- (b) As soon as possible after the completion of the annual audit, the Governing Body will review the annual audit, and if the annual audit reveals any breach of this Ordinance, the City agrees to promptly cure the breach.
- (c) Within 30 days after the acceptance of the audit by the Governing Body, a copy of the annual audit will be filed in the office of the City Clerk. The annual audit will be open to examination and inspection during normal business hours by any taxpayer, any user of the services of the System, the Owner, or anyone acting for or on behalf of the taxpayer, user or Owner.
- (d) The City acknowledges its undertakings set forth in Section 2.1(v) of the Purchase Agreement.

Section 706. <u>Performance of Duties</u>. The City will faithfully and punctually perform all duties and obligations with respect to the operation of the System, including all extensions and improvements thereto, now or hereafter imposed upon the City by the constitution and laws of the State and by the provisions of this Ordinance.

### ARTICLE VIII

### ADDITIONAL BONDS

Section 801. <u>Prior Lien Bonds</u>. The City will not issue any debt obligations payable out of the Net Revenues that are superior in lien, security or otherwise to the Bonds.

### Section 802. Parity Lien Bonds or Obligations.

- (a) The City will not issue any additional bonds or other long-term obligations payable out of the Net Revenues of the System that stand on parity or equality with the Bonds unless the following conditions are met:
  - (1) the City is not in default in the payment of principal or interest on the Bonds or any Parity Bonds or in making any deposit into the funds and accounts under this Ordinance or any Parity Ordinance; and
    - (2) the City provides to the Owner a certificate showing either of the following:
    - (A) the average annual Net Revenues as set forth in the two most recent annual audits for Fiscal Years preceding the issuance of additional bonds, are at least 110% of the average annual debt service on the System Revenue Bonds, including the additional bonds proposed to be issued, to be paid out of the Net Revenues in all succeeding Fiscal Years. Interest to be paid on any System Revenue Bonds will be reduced by Subsidy Payments, if any. Principal and/or interest to be paid on any System Revenue Bonds will be reduced by amounts deposited in trust or escrowed for the payment thereof with the Owner or commercial bank or trust company located in the State of Missouri having full trust powers and acting as trustee or escrow agent and that are reasonably expected to be used for the payment of principal and/or interest on any System Revenue Bonds during the calculation period. If the City has made any increase in rates for the use and services of the System and the increase has not been in effect during all of the two Fiscal Years for which annual

Customal for the propertiest part from the Resenter. The entire trial and continued in accounting time; the contile epitement entire Recommission plan to the continue of the continue of the continue of the continue of the

etro speak progressie aft attige famous aft to architement att solve although to assess at . . . . . . . . . . As armed a Casalt aconsolita annual agent timbra bleen brooms at the brook bleen bleen and a solve an analysis

prices where a scient againment out set tiles out the ward price of sold to the address the first their languag The perturbation of again of the fitter in the out of sinciples of the interest of helicity the address in the constraint of the interest ward of the context of the

angtanit adk in 1211. Control at Arat in anderstand in an all the Senten Collection of Alexandria.

According to

action to make the product of the collection of the product of the section of the collection of the co

### THE RESIDENCE

### AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PERSON OF THE PERSON

And the second control of the first through and through any debug by the control of the control

processing the design of the contract of

The major distriction of the protocol gaths in which the color of the subsection of the Color of

on alliand out an horizont us before open menespropolit in the bit in the color of the bit.

The proposition of the bit o

الكال الأنفاذ والمطابع المراقب العدوم والمطران والمطاوعة ومجالله والراوا بالورا إساهيرون

indiginal team of the control of the first of the constituent of the control of t

audits are available, the City may add to the audited Net Revenues the additional Net Revenues that would have resulted if the rate increase had been in effect for the entire period, as certified by a Consultant; or

- the estimated average annual Net Revenues for the two Fiscal Years immediately following the issuance of the additional bonds or, if improvements are to be made to the System with the proceeds of the additional bonds, for the two Fiscal Years immediately following the Fiscal Year in which the improvements to the System being financed by the additional bonds are to be in commercial operation, as certified by a Consultant, is at least 110% of the average annual debt service on the System Revenue Bonds, including the additional bonds proposed to be issued, to be paid out of the Net Revenues in succeeding Fiscal Years following the commencement of commercial operation of the improvements. Interest to be paid on any System Revenue Bonds will be reduced by Subsidy Payments, if any. Principal and/or interest to be paid on any System Revenue Bonds will be reduced by amounts deposited in trust or escrowed for the payment thereof with the Owner or commercial bank or trust company located in the State of Missouri having full trust powers and acting as trustee or escrow agent and that are reasonably expected to be used for the payment of principal and/or interest on any System Revenue Bonds during the calculation period. In determining the amount of estimated Net Revenues for the purpose of this subsection, a Consultant may adjust the estimated net income and revenues by adding the estimated increase in Net Revenues resulting from any increase in rates for the use and services of the System approved by the City and to become effective during the two Fiscal Years immediately following the Fiscal Year in which the improvements to the System being financed by the additional bonds are to be in commercial operation.
- (b) If the conditions set forth in this Section are satisfied, the City (i) may issue additional revenue bonds or other obligations of the City on a parity with the Bonds and that enjoy complete equality of the lien on the Net Revenues with the Bonds, (ii) may make equal provision for paying the additional revenue bonds or other obligations from the Revenue Fund, and (iii) may secure the additional revenue bonds or other obligations by funding reasonable System debt service accounts and debt service reserve accounts from the Net Revenues.

Section 803. <u>Junior Lien Bonds</u>. Nothing in this Article prohibits or restricts the right of the City to issue additional revenue obligations, including revenue bonds, for the purpose of extending, improving, enlarging, repairing or altering the System, or refunding obligations issued for such purposes, that are junior and subordinate to the Bonds if, at the time of the issuance of the additional revenue obligations, the City is not in default in the performance of any covenant or agreement in this Ordinance. If the City is in default in paying either interest on or principal of the Bonds, the City will not make any payments on the subordinate revenue obligations until the default is cured. Subject to the limitations in this Section, the City may make provision for paying the principal of and interest on the subordinate revenue bonds or obligations from moneys in the Revenue Fund.

Section 804. <u>Refunding Bonds</u>. The City may, without complying with the provisions of <u>Section 802</u>, refund any of the Bonds or any Parity Bonds in a manner that provides debt service savings to the City, and the refunding bonds so issued will be on a parity with any of the Bonds and any Parity Bonds that are not refunded. If the Bonds or any Parity Bonds are refunded in part and the refunding bonds bear a higher average rate of interest or become due on a date earlier than that of the Bonds or the Parity Bonds that are refunded, the City must obtain the prior written consent of the Owner to the issuance of the refunding bonds.

marine me accentidate, the caregrams and to described box for or one the soldier of Ma.

Revenues that account opens commed a margine legislated boxin in 1900s for the bridge reached in the control of the soldier.

reach books were allowed commons, the following arraying testionally optimised and an experimental extension of the common and the statement of the common of the common and the statement of the common of the common and present the common of the common of

In contribute and their tray of the benefits one indicate that their pay another tray of paying and paying pay paying and become of the benefits of the property of the paying a few and the contribute of the paying and payi

with the contract of the contract of the contract of the standard of the contract of the contr

to encountry and the purposition must be a supply that I split the property of the property of

### ARTICLE IX

### **DEFAULT AND REMEDIES**

Section 901. Events of Default. If (a) the City defaults in the payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Bonds, or (b) the City or its Governing Body or any of its officers, agents or employees fails or refuses to comply with any provision of this Ordinance, the Constitution or statutes of the State, the Purchase Agreement or the Escrow Agreement and default continues for a period of 60 days after written notice specifying the non-payment default has been given to the City by the Owner of any Bond then Outstanding, at any time thereafter and while the default continues, the City shall pay to DNR the penalties assessed by DNR in accordance with the Regulations.

### Section 902. Remedies.

- (a) The provisions of this Ordinance constitute a contract between the City and the Owners of the Bonds. The Owner or Owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all Owners of Bonds similarly situated:
  - (1) by any proceeding at law or in equity to enforce the rights of the Owner or Owners against the City and its officers, agents and employees, and to compel the performance by the City of its duties and obligations under this Ordinance, the Constitution and the laws of the State;
  - (2) by any proceeding at law or in equity to require the City, its officers, agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and
  - (3) by any proceeding at law or in equity to enjoin any act or thing that is unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Bonds.
- (b) Any amounts paid on the Bonds to the Owners will be applied first to interest and second to principal, to the extent due and payable.
- Section 903. <u>Limitation on Rights of Owners</u>. No Owner has any right in any manner whatever by the Owner's action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security granted and provided for in, or enforce any right under, this Ordinance, except in the manner provided in this Ordinance. All proceedings at law or in equity will be for the equal benefit of all Owners.
- Section 904. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred upon the Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy. Each remedy is in addition to every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting any other remedy conferred under this Ordinance. No waiver by any Owner of any default or breach of duty or contract of the City under this Ordinance will affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract by the City or impair any rights or remedies thereon. No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default will impair any right or power or will be construed to be a waiver of any default. Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Owners of the Bonds by this Ordinance may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be expedient. If any Owner discontinues any proceeding or the decision in the proceeding is against the Owner, the City and the Owners of the Bonds will be restored to their former positions and rights under this Ordinance.

### CHARLEST CONTRACT TO A TOTAL

And the hopping of the transport of the holder of the hopping of t

### The state of the s

- To any Witness the State of the Department of Additional Committee of the Committee of the State of the State
- a provide provide the Sengtown senting of grippore and acting providency groups.

  The Sent of Senting of Senting of the Sengtown of the Senting of the Senti
- but surely a security of and an appear of physical strengths and the uniform appear of the figure of the security and consequences o
- an litheorium school genetren roos nee unijna ni spilose eden ee di magnetissees, ma see 200 . Alexad ede to convect set is est to est in continui steeri.
- latore. These transport the first hand to a second to a decided by the property of the second control of the control of the second c
- The state of the s

and on the basis of the collection of the collec

Section 905. <u>No Obligation to Levy Taxes</u>. Nothing in this Ordinance imposes any duty or obligation on the City to levy any taxes either to meet any obligation incurred under this Ordinance or to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds.

### ARTICLE X

### DEFEASANCE

Section 1001. Defeasance. When all of the Bonds have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this Ordinance and the pledge of revenues made hereunder and all other rights granted hereby shall terminate. Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this Ordinance if there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent, or other bank or trust company located in the State of Missouri, having full trust powers and meeting the requirements of a successor Paying Agent (as set forth in the Escrow Agreement) impressed with a first lien to the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners, at or prior to Stated Maturity or redemption date of said Bonds, in trust for and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or non-callable Defeasance Securities (the "Defeasance Escrow") which, together with the interest to be earned on any such obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal of said Bonds and interest to accrue to the Stated Maturity or date of redemption, as the case may be, or if default in such payment shall have occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such payments, provided; however, that if any such Bonds shall be redeemed prior to Stated Maturity, (a) the City shall have elected to redeem such Bonds, and (b) either notice of such redemption shall have been given or the City shall have given irrevocable instructions to the Paying Agent to redeem such Bonds; and provided further, however, there shall be filed with the City, the Owner and the Paying Agent (1) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the conditions for the defeasance of the Bonds pursuant to this Section have been complied with and (2) if the interest on the Defeasance Escrow is to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds at their Stated Maturity or upon redemption, the written report of an independent certified public accountant evidencing the sufficiency of the Defeasance Escrow. Any moneys and obligations which at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent, or other bank by or on behalf of the City, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Bonds shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company in trust for the respective Owners of the Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge of this Ordinance. All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Ordinance.

### ARTICLE XI

### **AMENDMENTS**

### Section 1101. Amendments.

- (a) Any provision of the Bonds or of this Ordinance may be amended by an ordinance with the prior written consent of the Owners. Consent must be evidenced by an instrument executed by the Owners, acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be recorded, and filed with the City Clerk.
- (b) No amendment will be effective until (i) the City has delivered to the Owners and the Paying Agent an opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the amendment is permitted by this Ordinance and the Act, complies with their respective terms and is valid and binding upon the City in accordance with its terms, and (ii) the City Clerk has on file a copy of the amendment and all required consents.

TO WIND YOU IN COURT SOME IN THE STATE OF TH

self-sold, hopedwith fire this easy ment sharp only by the sold—sprayed problem of the cases successfully with the transmitted of the cases successfully with the transmitted of the cases successfully with the burner of the vites of the cases of the sold of the sold of the vites of the vites of the problem of the vites of the sold of the sold of the vites of the sold of the vites of the vites

### the familiar

### TO THE VIOLENCE OF THE PARTY OF

### and the second second section is a second se

New evidentials are all hybridge of their actional field to produce their researching grad. They will be the following the product and the product and the field their states are all the fields and the field their states are also and the field their states are also and the field their states are and the field their states are and the field their states are also as a f

spirolati sementi semin tempeti de met spiro sale pri mem semina sal mise membrappi pris — pri International male prite di mengras transferencia pel l'adopti de meser la cett permitagni de semina per semi sal di wasoni memeri sul il cett ancie promine l'embrasse i nu semina semina per semina per semina per semina semina de municipa i la financia di permita di l'actipa, pentre me al protes representation del perme

### ARTICLE XII

### MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1201. <u>Further Authority</u>. The officers of the City, including the Mayor and the City Clerk, are authorized and directed to execute all documents and take the actions as are necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this Ordinance and to make ministerial changes in the documents approved by this Ordinance which they may approve. The execution of any document or taking of any related action constitutes conclusive evidence of the necessity or advisability of the action or change.

Section 1202. <u>Electronic Transactions</u>. The transactions described in this Ordinance and the Bonds may be conducted and related documents may be stored, received and delivered by electronic means. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law.

Section 1203. <u>Severability</u>. If any section or other part of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity will not affect the validity of the other provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 1204. Governing Law. This Ordinance is governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 1205. <u>Effective Date</u>. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage by the Board of Aldermen and approval by the Mayor.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

### UV III WAA

### Estimate and the participation is a second

the control of the second of the control of the control of the control of the flagor and the flagor of the control of the cont

ent been amonthal for an entermination of the problem of the probl

Samuel (1964), the engine of the composition of the

the house many will the four yet ho<del>rnesse</del>n an examplifier and C. <u>1998. I probably the second of the first second of the fir</u>

e seeden beer begroot en de begroot en de begrootstelle begroot de begroot de begroot de begrootstelle de begroot de begrootstelle de begroots

Mark to be the entire the extra place of the state of the

<b>PASSED</b> by the Board of Aldermen and <b>APPROVED</b> by the Mayor of the City of Meadville Missouri, this 9th day of November, 2020.	e,
(SEAL)	
Mayor	
ATTEST:	
City Clerk	

proposed the contract of Alexander and Alexander (as the bloom of the Cross Markette.)

1 // (8)

1000

...

### EXHIBIT A

### FORM OF BOND

## [THIS BOND IS TRANSFERABLE ONLY TO ANY SUCCESSOR TO THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES OR ITS ASSIGNS]

Registered No. R		Not to exceed \$
1	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MISSOURI	
C	ITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI	
COMBINED WATERV (STATE OF	VORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM F MISSOURI – DIRECT LOAN PRO SERIES 2020	1 REVENUE BOND GRAM)
Closing Date	Interest Rate	Stated Maturity
REGISTERED OWNER:	[MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF N	ATURAL RESOURCES]
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:	NOT TO EXCEED	DOLLARS

The CITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI, a fourth-class city and political subdivision of the State of Missouri (the "City"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Owner shown above, or registered assigns, the Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding set forth on Schedule A to this Bond on the Maturity Date shown above, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum shown above, on January 1 and July 1 in each year, commencing July 1, 2021 (each an "Interest Payment Date"), from the date shown on Schedule A or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. Terms not otherwise defined in this Bond have the respective meanings as set forth in the Ordinance.

The principal of this Bond shall be paid at maturity or upon earlier redemption to the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the maturity or redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the payment office of UMB Bank, N.A., St. Louis, Missouri (the "Paying Agent"), or such other office designated by the Paying Agent. The payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, payable on this Bond at maturity or upon earlier redemption and the interest payable on this Bond on any Interest Payment Date will be made by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of the Owner shown in the Bond Register. The principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds is payable by electronic transfer in immediately available federal funds to a bank in the continental United States of America pursuant to instructions from any Owner received by the Paying Agent prior to the Record Date. The principal of and interest on this Bond is payable in lawful money of the United States of America.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized series of bonds of the City designated "Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri – Direct Loan Program) Series 2020"

### Characters borning

- Harris Markey (1965), 1967, (2), 12, 2000, has appropriately a graph of the second s

barring a

Maria da Tito de la composición del composición de la composición

be because it is not a second

distribution

Particular transfer of the participation processing

market property

THE RESERVE OF THE PERSON OF T

AZONINA DOMEST

and the state of t

are produced and produced to a function of the surface of their breath of the improvement and the produced are produced in the produced and their produced are produced as the produced are pr

Analytics 2° decomples of the will be about the point department of the first of the sunsational and the second of the second of

(the "Bonds"), issued by the City for the purpose of extending and improving the combined waterworks and sewerage system owned and operated by the City (said system, together with all future improvements and extensions thereto hereafter constructed or acquired by the City, being herein called the "System"), under the authority of and in full compliance with Chapter 250 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and pursuant to an election duly held in the City and an ordinance duly passed by the governing body of the City (the "Ordinance").

At the option of the City, the Bonds may be called for redemption and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part as provided in the Ordinance, with the prior written consent of the Owners.

The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of the Ordinance, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Except as otherwise provided in the Ordinance, notice of redemption, unless waived, is to be given by the Paying Agent by mailing an official redemption notice by registered or certified mail at least 15 days, but not more than 30 days, prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of the Bond or Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such Owner to the Paying Agent. Notice of redemption having been given or waived as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the City shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest.

The Bonds are limited obligations of the City payable solely from, and secured as to the payment of principal and interest by a pledge of, the Net Revenues. The taxing power of the City is not pledged to the payment of the Bonds either as to principal or interest. The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the City or an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision, limitation or restriction.

The Bonds are issued on a parity with the Outstanding Parity Bonds.

Under the conditions set forth in the Ordinance, the City has the right to issue additional bonds payable from the Net Revenues; provided, however, that such additional bonds may be so issued only in accordance with and subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions relating thereto set forth in the Ordinance.

The City covenants with the Owner of this Bond to keep and perform all covenants and agreements contained in the Ordinance, and the City will fix, establish, maintain and collect rates, fees and charges for the use and services furnished by or through the System to produce Revenues sufficient to pay the operation and maintenance costs of the System, pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and provide reasonable and adequate reserve funds. Reference is made to the Ordinance for a description of the agreements made by the City with respect to the collection, segregation and application of the Revenues, the nature and extent of the security for the Bonds, the rights, duties and obligations of the City with respect to the Bonds, and the rights of the Owners.

The Bonds are issuable in the form of fully-registered Bonds in the denomination of \$100 or any integral multiple of \$0.01 in excess thereof.

This Bond may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Ordinance, only upon the registration books kept for that purpose at the above-mentioned office of the Paying Agent, upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer or exchange satisfactory to the Paying Agent

(the "Pearle" prompt of the control of the papers of extending on improved the regularity statements and servence of the control of the contr

ar de quen el forter, lis limisem predict forquiem and proper of particular Destribuent els estreta la line Californe el la lispania collecta de la la la collecta de la la Californe

The Beach on carried to condulary desimpant and promin part formency parocal to me approximate epidemical expansion of the Colleges of a relamping placement to their differential to the placement of the placeme

and the second control of the second control

discontinued to the medital or althought and the continuent of the section of the testing of the continuent and the continuent and the continuent and the continuent of the co

isto dell'i Striction chiretteto Combertiano gibro pro un ferme l'assentince it angli

And the state of the semi-sure of the state of the sure of the state of the significant of the sure of

The companies of the property of the space of the property of the space of the companies of

are so that are maturate metals and the state have been a pre-chief from an about all faces one companies of a Attended to the confidence of the state of the sta

ad organish o sementek i altra i Bahlyong se shagardaya no bentitangg-sol yana badet and i Salasa ununcu stenga sang Coult in walka lewindrawas wood altrian siyang tada salasya kalasa batas shigarah w Tenga pengalasih di yananki han siyan karang sengan tahun menganan sedilak salas yang sajar pada salas salas sa duly executed by the Owner or the Owner's duly authorized agent, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination of the same maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Ordinance, and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed. The City and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes.

This Bond will not be valid or be entitled to any security or benefit under the Ordinance until the Paying Agent has executed the Certificate of Authentication.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to the issuance of the Bonds have existed, happened and been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that before the issuance of the Bonds, provision has been duly made for the collection, segregation and application of the income and revenues of the System as provided in the Ordinance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Meadville, Missouri, has executed this Bond by causing it to be signed by the manual signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual signature of its City Clerk, and its official seal to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon.

(SEAL)	CITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI
ATTEST:	
City Clerk	ByMayor
CERTIFICATE (	OF AUTHENTICATION
This Bond is one of the Bonds of the issu	ne described in the within-mentioned Ordinance.
Registration Date:	
	UMB BANK, N.A., Paying Agent
	ByAuthorized Signatory

19th, those will now by with now by searched to any security on best an union too the branch will the staying through the best based on the branch of Application to the search of the s

Philosophia dell'Imperiori della compania della compania della productiona della compania della seggio della d Productionale della compania della compania della compania della compania della compania della compania della Alla compania della Pri della compania della compani

The control of the Control of the second and an exercise of the second of the second of the Control of the Control of the second of the second

DE TO SERVE A LI DEO SERVE A PERENTE.

yat'

Assume the Characteristic and the adjugate place of the contract of the contract with the contract with the contract of the co

оми изгласти.

### RECORD OF PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS AND PREPAYMENTS

Under the provisions of the Ordinance, payments of the principal installments of this Bond and partial prepayments of the principal of this Bond will be made directly to the Owner without surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent. Accordingly, any purchaser or other transferee of this Bond should verify with the Paying Agent the principal of this Bond outstanding prior to such purchase or transfer, and the records of the Paying Agent shall be conclusive for such purposes.

ASSIGNM	IENT
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersi	gned sells, assigns and transfers unto
(Print or Type Name, A Security Number or other Taxpayer Ide	Address and Social entification Number of Transferee)
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby in N.A., agent to transfer the within Bond on the books ke with full power of substitution in the premises.	irrevocably constitutes and appoints UMB BANK, pt by the Paying Agent for the registration thereof,
Dated:	
	NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of the Registered Owner as it appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular.
	Medallion Signature Guarantee:

to a long of the summer of the configuration of the continues of the section of the section of the continues of the continues

### 1.00 (40)

out Hitchol hitcospins the templation of VIVII and UNIVIDER

The state I begin a set blade, a trace of maps (Constraint).

The state of the section of Constraint (Constraint) and the present maps of the section of the

ne vedan biner en de novembre en discourre de la metro de la constitue en discourre de la la 1848. St. la presenta mentra de per per de la collection de la la la collection de la collection de la collection de St. la la la constitue de la la la collection de la

keled

South manufactural transmission of the MANA and the following and

### SCHEDULE A

### CITY OF MEADVILLE, MISSOURI COMBINED WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM REVENUE BOND (STATE OF MISSOURI – DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM) SERIES 2020

### CUMULATIVE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OUTSTANDING

Date <sup>(1)</sup>	Purchase Price Installment	Principal Amount Redeemed <sup>(2)</sup>	Cumulative Principal Amount Outstanding	Authorized Signatory of Paying Agent
				-

Date constitutes date of registration with respect to such portion of the Bond. Commencing with first Principal Payment Date if prior to Completion of Funding. (1)

# White light was a line of the large of the l

### DEPOSE STREET AS TWO HONGS DOWNSTRING STREET, AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE PARTY

EXHIBIT B MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION SCHEDULE

Redemption Date	Principal Amount	Redemption Date	Principal Amount
January 1, 2023 July 1, 2023 January 1, 2024 July 1, 2024 January 1, 2025 July 1, 2025 January 1, 2026 July 1, 2026 July 1, 2027 July 1, 2027 July 1, 2027 January 1, 2028 July 1, 2028 July 1, 2028 July 1, 2029 July 1, 2029 July 1, 2029 July 1, 2030 July 1, 2030 January 1, 2031	\$11,000 11,000 11,100 11,200 11,300 11,400 11,500 11,500 11,600 11,700 11,800 11,900 12,000 12,100 12,200 12,300 12,300	July 1, 2032 January 1, 2033 July 1, 2033 January 1, 2034 July 1, 2034 January 1, 2035 July 1, 2035 January 1, 2036 July 1, 2036 July 1, 2037 July 1, 2037 July 1, 2037 January 1, 2038 July 1, 2038 July 1, 2038 July 1, 2039 July 1, 2039 July 1, 2039 July 1, 2039 July 1, 2040 July 1, 2040	\$12,600 12,700 12,800 12,900 13,000 13,100 13,200 13,300 13,400 13,500 13,600 13,700 13,800 13,900 14,000 14,100 14,200 14,300
July 1, 2031 January 1, 2032	12,400 12,500	January 1, 2041 July 1, 2041 January 1, 2042†	14,400 14,400 14,700

†Maturity

17 II 114 1

### Afficient to be a major of the contract of the